
 

Link to W

C

 

No. 

T
im

e 
in

 
P

re
 m

ee
ti

ng
: 

  23

    

1 3
2 5
    
    
    

3 10

    

COMMI

Const

Webcam co

onference

m
in

u
te

s 

Call i

8 2 
  

3   C
5   A

  D
    

0 
Expla
topic, 

ITTEE O

titution B
34

Jef

onnection:

e call Nos. 

The t
in and conn

Call to Order/
Approval of M
Documentatio

anation of ag
parking lot 

ON ACC
AG

Bldg.  Do
425 Cons
fferson C

Marc
10:00 am

Morning b
Lunch bre

Afternoon b

:  http://me

 (573) 526

telephone li
nect to Adob

/Roll Call 
Minutes of D
on:  Correct

PRELIM
genda format

agenda, etc.

1 

ESS TO 
GENDA 
ogwood C
stitution C
City, MO 
ch 7. 2014
m – 2:00 p
reak 10 min
eak 30 minu
break 10 min

 
eetingcente

  

6-5504 and

Item

ine and Ado
be 5 minute

December 6, 
ted Minutes

MINARIES 
t, time allotm
  (Chair)    

  

 
FAMILY

Conferen
Court 
 65110 

pm 
nutes 
utes 
nutes 

er.courts.m

d Toll-free

m 

obe Connect
s before the

 
 

2013 
s for Decem

 – NEW WA
ments, record

Y COUR

nce Room

mo.gov/cafc

e (866) 630

t will be  op
e meeting to

mber 6, 2013 

AYS 
der’s role, st

RTS 

m, 

fcmeet/  

0-9347 

pen at 9:50a
o verify your

taying on 

Page

m.               
r connection

  

  

  

  

P 5 

  

  

  

  

 

       
ns. 



2 
 

    PRIORITY BUSINESS   

          

4 10 Welcome of new members.  Roundtable introductions   

      Action:  Roundtable introductions   

      Documentation:  Roster. handout 

        

5 15 Voluntary Dismissal Form   

      Action:  Review and approval.   

      Documentation: Voluntary Dismissal Form CAFC713 P 9 

      Presenter: Gabel (Forms subcommittee)   

      Recorder: Key points. Clear statement of decision.   

          

6 10 Clerk Education Webinar Training project   

      Action:  Review and approval.   

      Documentation: Proposed Clerk Education Webinar Training P 11 

      Presenter: Brown  (Court Staff Education subcommittee)   

      Recorder: Key points. Clear statement of decision.   

          

    OTHER BUSINESS   

7 10 
CAFC communications – What information should we communicating in 
the next 90 days and to what audience?   

      Action:  Input to Communications Subcommittee    

        

    
SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS   

(Not action items.     

Oral highlights of written reports, questions & discussion.)   

          

8 10 Pro Bono Initiatives (DeFeo/Burke/Schneider)   

      Topic: Project to build community with local bar associations     

      Action: Questions/discussion.   

      Documentation:     

      1)      Highlights Report   P 48 

      2)    Implementation Plan    
archives 
link 

          

  10   BREAK   

          

9 10 Limited Scope Representation (Powell/Beach/Broniec)   

      Topic: Revision of LSR brochure   

      Action:  Questions/discussion   

      Presenter:  Powell/Broniec   

http://www.courts.mo.gov/page.jsp?id=10562


3 
 

      Documentation:     

      1)      Highlights Report P 50 

      2)   Implementation Plan  
archives 
link 

      3)  Revised LSR brochure P 51 

          

10 10 Website  (Bird/Brown)    

      Topic:  General Status Update   

      Action:  Questions/discussion   

      Documentation:     

      1)      Highlights Report P 53 

      2)   Implementation Plan      (to be merged with LAP) 
archives 
link 

          

11 15 Forms  (Gabel)      

      Topic:  General Status Update   

      Action:  Questions/discussion   

      Documentation:     

      1)      Highlights Report P 54 

      2)   Implementation Plan. 
archives 
link 

          

12 10 Communications  (Rinard)   

      Action:  Questions/discussion   

      1)      Highlights Report P 54 

      2)   Implementation Plan 
archives 
link 

          

13 10 Court staff education (Brown/Bird)       

      Topic:  Court staff training program.   

      
Action:  Update on court staff training program status.  
Questions/discussion   

      Documentation:    

      1)      Highlights Report             P 56 

      2)   Implementation Plan    
archives 
link 

       3)  PowerPoint P 11 

          

14 5 Judicial education (Powell)   

      Topic: Update on Domestic Relations Bench Book status    

      Action:  Questions/discussion   

      Documentation:     

http://www.courts.mo.gov/page.jsp?id=10562
http://www.courts.mo.gov/page.jsp?id=10562
http://www.courts.mo.gov/page.jsp?id=10562
http://www.courts.mo.gov/page.jsp?id=10562
http://www.courts.mo.gov/page.jsp?id=10562


4 
 

      1)      Highlights report.     P 57 

      2)   Implementation Plan 
archives 
link 

          

  30   LUNCH   

         

      JUDICIAL LIAISON   

15 10 Update from the Court   

      Presenter:  Judge Wilson or OSCA staff   

          

    
OSCA STAFF REPORTS   

(Not action items)   

          

16 10 Website survey report   

      Action:  Questions/discussion   

      Presenter:  Norris   

      Documentation:   

      1)      Survey comments  
      2)      July - December 2013 survey statistics    
          

  10   BREAK   

          

  5   
Adobe Connect On-line training redux.  (CLE credit)  Survey best 
date.   

          

    EVALUATION OF TODAY’S MEETING   

17 5   Action:  Roundtable   

          

18 10 PARKING LOT AGENDA   

      
Action:  decision on disposition. (Decide now, refer to subcommittee, next 
agenda etc.)   

      +   

19 10 OPEN AIR   

          

20 5 ANNOUNCEMENTS   

      NEXT CAFC MEETING:  June 6, 2014 by teleconference.   

      +   

21   ADJOURNMENT   

          

 

 

http://www.courts.mo.gov/page.jsp?id=10562


 

 

COMMITTEE ON ACCESS TO FAMILY COURTS 
MINUTES 

Office of State Courts Administrator 
2112 Industrial Drive, Jefferson City, Missouri 65110 

December 6, 2013 - Teleconference Meeting 
 

Members Present: Lou DeFeo (chair), Kelly Martinez,  
 
Members Present by Telephone & Webcam:  Kathleen Bird, Judge Kelly Broniec, Karen 
Brown, Judge Teresa Burke, Sandy Dowd, Denise Gabel, Judge Larry Luna, Judge Joel 
Miller, Judge Brent Powell,  Judge Leslie Schneider 
 
Members Absent:  Judge Doug Beach, Judge William Francis, Richard Holtmeyer, Mike 
Rinard, Patricia Scaglia, Deanna Scott, Allan Stewart, JD Williamson 
 
OSCA Staff Present:  Kelly Cramer, Terri Norris 
 
Court Liaison Absent:  Judge Paul Wilson 
 
Missouri Bar Liaison Absent:  Robert Stoeckl 

 
I. Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 9:20 am. 
 

II. Approval of Minutes  
The committee reviewed the corrected minutes of the September 13, 2013 meeting.  No 
additional corrections were discussed. 
 
Judge Powell moved that the minutes be approved.  Judge Burke seconded the 
motion.  All approved.  The minutes were approved. 
 

III. Preliminaries – New Ways 
 

A. Explanation of agenda and time allotments 
B. Review of Adobe Connect tools. 

   
IV. Priority Business 

 
A. Filling member vacancies --Recommendations 
Two vacancies without recommendations:  The committee discussed various persons 
that might be good recommendations to replace JD Williamson and Allan Stewart.  
Those members who are familiar with the recommendations will contact those persons 
and talk to them about this committee and see if they are willing to serve as a member.  
Once they have confirmed the person’s availability and willingness to serve those 
recommendations will be sent to the Supreme Court for consideration. 

 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 5 of 57



 

 

  
 B. On-line training on Adobe Connect, Part B, How to be a presenter. (CLE 

credit) 
 The committee discussed the second part of Adobe Connect training and determined 

that the next training session will be held on January 23, 2014 between noon and 
1:00pm.  This training session will contain information on how to be an effective 
presenter during web camera meetings.  Both parts A and B can be claimed as CLE 
credit. 

 
C.   Programming change to Divorce Kit – Removal of Parenting Plan when no 
children.  

 The committee discussed the proposed change to the Dissolution packet.  On page 12 of 
the agenda packet are the questions within the petition for dissolution that will determine 
if the parenting plan is printed and included with the dissolution documents.  If a party 
answers several questions regarding children and the end result is that question 37’s 
answer is zero (‘0’), then the parenting plan will not print in the dissolution packet. 
 
Judge Broniec moved that the programming change to the dissolution packet 
when there are no children be approved.  Judge Burke seconded the motion.  All 
approved.  The programming change to the dissolution packet is approved. 
  

  D. Change to Motion to Modify Child Custody – Include disclaimer about 
  Service by Publication contained within dissolution petition. 

The committee discussed adding a disclaimer to the motion to modify packet regarding 
service by publication that is similar to the existing disclaimer in the dissolution petition.  
Several suggestions were made and the disclaimer was revised as follows: 
 
 “If you have service by publication, you are not entitled to obtain any kind of money 
judgment against the other parent for such things as child support.  This option should 
only be used as a last resort.” 
 
Judge Schneider moved that the revised disclaimer for the Motion to Modify be 
approved.  Judge Broniec seconded the motion.  All approve.  The revised 
disclaimer will be sent to the State Judicial Records Committee for comment. 

 
IV. Other Business  

 
A. CAFC Communications 
No additional discussion. 
 
B. Roster & Subcommittee assignments 
The contact information for Mike Rinard is out of date.  He no longer works for Legal 
Services Corporation of Western Missouri.  Lou will try to find out his new contact 
information.  Judge Burke is also to be added as a co-chair of the Pro Bono/LSR/Self-
Help subcommittee. 
 

V. Subcommittee Reports 
 
 A. Pro Bono Initiatives & Self-Help Centers (DeFeo/Burke/Schneider) 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 6 of 57



 

 

  1. Highlights Report 
  2. Implementation Plan 

The committee discussed the report included in the agenda as well as the bar association 
presentations made by Judge Wilson. 

 
 B. Limited Scope Representation (Powell/Beach/Broniec) 
  1. Highlights Report 
  2. Promotional brochure on LSR 
  3. Implementation Plan 

The committee discussed the report and leaflet included in the agenda.  It was agreed that 
a uniform look for publications created by this committee would be beneficial so 
audiences may be able to more easily identify what this committee has produced.  
Additionally, Kathleen Bird and Judge Luna will work on creating LSR panels, similar to 
those in Clay and Christian County, to actively promote LSR throughout the state. 

 
 C. Website & Litigant Awareness (Bird/Brown) 
  1.  Highlights Report 
  2.  Implementation Plan 

The committee discussed the report included in the agenda. 
 

 D. Forms (Gabel) 
  1. Highlights Report 
  2. Implementation Plan 

No additional information regarding the forms was discussed. 
 

 E. Communications (Rinard) 
  1. Highlights Report (pending) 
  2. Implementation Plan 
 In the absence of the subcommittee chair no report was discussed. 
 
 F. Court Staff Education (Bird) 
  1. Highlights Report 
  2. Implementation Plan 
 The committee discussed the report included in the agenda. 
 
 G. Judicial Education (Powell) 
  1. Highlights Report 
  2. Implementation Plan 
 The committee discussed the report included in the agenda. 
 
VI. Judicial Liaison 
 

A. Update from Court 
The chair briefly reported on the status of new appointments. 

 
VII. OSCA Staff Reports 
 

A. Website Survey report 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 7 of 57



 

 

The committee discussed the survey comments included in the agenda.  A request for 
analysis of hits on the website and geographic information on users was discussed. 

 
VIII. Evaluation of Today’s Meeting 

Member comments were: “Like the interactive formatting and keeping the 
subcommittee reports moving.”  “I really like the new format for the running of the 
meeting.  The interactive nature of the [Adobe Connect] site is terrific.”  “Love the 
enhanced technology - makes meetings more efficient.” 

 
IX. Parking Lot Agenda 
 No open items. 
 
X. Open Air 
 No comments. 
 
XI. Announcements 
 
 Next CAFC meeting:  March 3, 2014 (at OSCA, Jefferson City) 
 
XII. Adjournment 
 The meeting was adjourned at 11:10 am. 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 8 of 57



Voluntary Dismissal of Petition - Page 1 of 2
This form is available for free at www.selfrepresent.mo.gov Form CAFC713-2014 DRAFT 

 

Form CAFC713 – Voluntary Dismissal of Petition or Motion 
THIS MOTION WILL NOT DISMISS ANY MOTIONS OR PETITIONS FILED BY ANOTHER 

PARTY IN THIS MATTER. 

 

In what Missouri county is 
this case pending? 

 

 

What is the case number 
in the pending case? 
 

 

 

Petition or Motion filed with 
the Court 
 

 

 

Your Information 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Other Parties’ Information 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In the Circuit Court of                 , MISSOURI 
 
 
 
 
Case Number        Division Number  
 
 
 
 
 
Enter the petition or motion filed with the Court to be dismissed. 
 
 
 
 
 
1. My full name is: 
 
 _______________  __________  ___________________  _______ 
 (First Name)            (Middle Name)   (Last Name)              (Jr./Sr./III) 
 
2.  I am the Petitioner/Plaintiff in this case. 
 I am the Respondent/Defendant in this case. 
 I am a third party in this case. 
 Others (Please specify) _________________________________ 
 
3. My mailing address is: 
 
 _____________________________________________________ 
 (Street) 
  
 _______________________    _______________    ___________ 
 (City)            (State)    (Zip) 
  
 ___________________    ________________________________ 

 (Telephone Number)               (E-mail Address) 
 
 
 
 
 
4. The full name of the other party in this case is: 
 
 _______________  __________  ___________________  _______ 
 (First Name)  (Middle Name)     (Last Name)                (Jr./Sr./III) 
 
 You must send a separate copy of this form to every party to this case. 

 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 9 of 57



Voluntary Dismissal of Petition - Page 2 of 2
This form is available for free at www.selfrepresent.mo.gov Form CAFC713-2014 DRAFT 

 

I Wish to Inform the 
Court That 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Proof of Service on 
Other Party 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sign Here in Front of a 
Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

YOU MUST CHECK ALL THREE BOXES TO COMPLETE THIS FORM 
 
 I am no longer asking this Court to make a decision on the petition or  
 motion identified above. 
 
 I understand that dismissing my petition or motion will not dismiss any  
 motions or petitions filed by another party in this matter. 
 

PLEASE CONSULT AN ATTORNEY TO DETERMINE YOUR RIGHTS 
AND RESPONSIBILITIES IN CONNECTION WITH THE FILING OF THIS 
DOCUMENT. 

 
 I understand that I may still be required to pay any mandatory filing  
 fees or court costs assessed by the Court. 
 
 
I certify under oath that I have given ______________________ a copy of this 
Voluntary Dismissal of Petition pursuant to Supreme Court Rule 43.01(d) by:   
(You MUST check at least ONE of the following four boxes) 
 
 Mailing a copy to the other party or his or her attorney on 
 
 ______________________  (Date) at the following address:  
 
 _________________________________________________________ 
 (Street)  
 
 _______________________________    _________________    ___________ 
 (City)            (State)    (Zip) 

 Handing a copy to the other party or his or her attorney on __________. 
 Sending a copy to the other party or his or her attorney by fax to 
 _______________________ (Fax Number) on _______________ (Date) 
 at ____________________ (Time). 
 Sending a copy via electronic mail to the other party or his or her 
 attorney at ____________________________________ (E-mail Address) on  
 ______________________ (Date). 
 
 
Affiant, of lawful age, being duly sworn on his or her oath, states that he or 
she is the affiant named herein and that the facts stated in this Voluntary 
Dismissal of Petition are true according to his or her best knowledge and 
belief. 
 
►________________________________   ________________________________ 
    Affiant – SIGN HERE                  Affiant – PRINT YOUR NAME HERE 
 
Subscribed and sworn to on ______________________________. 
 
______________________________     My Commission Expires: ______________________ 
Notary Public 
 

 
The above matter is dismissed. 
 
So Ordered: 
 
 
 
___________________________ ___________________ 
Judge/Commissioner   Date 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 10 of 57



Court Staff Education Module I

Serving the 
Self-Represented Litigant

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 11 of 57



Right of Access to Justice

For more than 200 years ago Americans 
have believed that fairness and freedom 
require access to our court system. This  
fundamental principles is guaranteed by 
the Bill of Rights in the U.S. Constitution. 

The right to sue and defend in the courts 
is … one of the highest and most 
essential privileges of citizenship.” 

Chambers v. Baltimore & Ohio Railroad Co, 207 U.S. 
142, 148 (1907).  

.

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 12 of 57



Right of Access to Justice

Missouri’s Constitution also 
assures this right.  

Article I, Section 14 states:

“the courts of justice shall be open 
to every person … and that right 
and justice shall be administered 
without sale, denial or delay.”

•

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 13 of 57



Right of Access to Justice

Access to justice requires us to  
establish a climate where people of 
limited means have access to the 
courts to protect their rights and the 
rights of their families. 

Court clerks are on the front line of 
offering customer service to 
everyone seeking access to the 
courts.

.

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 14 of 57



What is a self-represented  litigant?

“Self-Represented Litigant” (“pro se” litigant):           
A person who represents oneself in a legal 
matter; acting on one’s own behalf; in person.”

• Black’s Law Dictionary, 7th Edition, 1999 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 15 of 57



Who are more likely to be 
self-represented?

People with higher income OR People with lower Income

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 16 of 57



A person with lower income

78.7% make less than $40,000 annually*

* Statistics for family law cases from www.selfrepresent.mo.gov (2012).

Who are more likely to be 
self-represented?

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 17 of 57



Who are more likely to be 
self-represented?

People who are less 
educated

OR People who are more 
educated

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 18 of 57



More educated

 27.1% had completed some college*

 28.2% had some type of degree*

* Statistics for family law cases from www.selfrepresent.mo.gov (2012).

Who are more likely to be 
self-represented?

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 19 of 57



Who are more likely to be 
self-represented?

People with children OR People without children

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 20 of 57



People with children

 78.2% had at least one child

* Statistics for family law cases from www.selfrepresent.mo.gov (2012).

Who are more likely to be 
self-represented?

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 21 of 57



Needs of self represented litigants:

• Information about our court system

• Information about court procedures

• Help understanding “legalese”

• Courteous staff  assistance as allowed by Court 
Operating Rule 25

• Approved forms and resources

• Connection to the Self Represent website.

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 22 of 57



Court Operating Rule 25

Clerks may provide self-represented 
litigants with information about …

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 23 of 57



Court Operating Rule 25

How to be more informed 
about their legal rights. 

Provide information about:
• Lawyer referral services

• Low cost legal services (including 
limited scope representation)

• Pro bono legal services

• Law libraries

.

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 24 of 57



Court Operating Rule 25

• Docketed case information 
for the self-represented 
litigant’s case 

• How to access Case.net

• Resources at 
www.selfrepresent.mo.gov

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 25 of 57



Court Operating Rule 25

Free approved forms and 
written instructions for 
completing the forms 
• available in your courthouse

• local resource centers

• www.selfrepresent.mo.gov

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 26 of 57



Assistance required by the 
Americans with Disabilities Act 
for a self-represented litigant 
who has limited literacy, 
physical infirmity, or other 
disabilities

Court Operating Rule 25

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 27 of 57



Court Operating Rule 25

Court-approved 
definitions of commonly 
used terms (“legalese”)

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 28 of 57



Court Operating Rule 25

Local court operations

Information on how to 
set matters for hearings 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 29 of 57



Court Operating Rule 25

Required parent and/or child education 
courses and mediation

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 30 of 57



Please read and answer the questions below.

1. Do you see yourself as an “ambassador” of the court? 
You are, indeed, the first contact for most court customers. Yes No

2. As an “ambassador,” does your interaction with customers 
model the belief that all court customers are provided access to 
equal justice in the courts?

Yes No

3. Do you sometimes go out of your way to assist a customer 
when it may not be the most convenient time? Yes No

4. If you were on the other side of the counter, as the customer, 
would you rate your service as “above average”? Yes No

5. Do you feel that you have adequate resources readily 
available to provide excellent service to your customers? Yes No

Reflect on how you can improve the level of service 
provided to court  customers.

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 31 of 57



How can I improve the level
of service to pro se litigants?

.

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 32 of 57



Can you offer these resources:

 Lists of lawyers, legal services 
programs, clinic programs

 Informational brochures and 
websites

 Approved forms and instructions

 Computerized assistance

 Access to mediation services

 Domestic violence advocates, 
social, health, and other 
community services

 Information on protecting children

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 33 of 57



www.selfrepresent.mo.gov
is a Supreme Court website designed to provide the

public with general information and resources on the 

Missouri Court system and approved forms in various 

family law matters.

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 34 of 57



Here is the Self Represent homepage

.

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 35 of 57



www.selfrepresent.mo.gov

First, direct people to 

the “Litigant Awareness

Program” which provides

an overview of court 

procedures and  common

types of family law cases

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 36 of 57



Litigant Awareness Program

Supreme Court Rule 88.09

Every person who chooses to be

self-represented in a proceeding 

for dissolution of marriage, legal 
separation, parentage or the

modification of a judgment must 

complete the litigant awareness

program (may be waived by the 
court).  

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 37 of 57



Litigant Awareness Program Content:

Discussion of risks and 
responsibilities of representing 
oneself

Self-assessment: should I 

represent myself in this case?

Overview of common procedures in  
domestic relations proceedings   

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 38 of 57



Proof of completion of Litigant Awareness Program

• Completion is required to use the approved forms. 

• Your Circuit may determine the method of proof of 
completion required.

• A Certificate of Completion can be printed at the end of 
the online Litigant Awareness Program and filed with the 
Court.

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 39 of 57



www.selfrepresent.mo.gov

Freepleadings & forms

approved by the Missouri 

Supreme Court for use by

people representing

themselves appear here.
(Forms are also available in the Litigant Awareness Program)

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 40 of 57



www.selfrepresent.mo.gov

Other features:
How to get a lawyer.

County by County resources.

An explanation of COR 25

and the assistance court

clerks may and may not provide

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 41 of 57



www.selfrepresent.mo.gov

More features:
Definitions for “legalese.”

Dispute resolution (mediation)

Publications

Domestic violence resources

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 42 of 57



Free forms available
for use by the self- represented litigants

Forms have been approved for:

• Adult abuse/stalking

• Dissolution of Marriage (Petitioner’s forms)

• Dissolution of Marriage (Respondent’s forms)

• Modification of child custody (and support)

• Modification of child support

• Motion for Family Access (visitation enforcement)

• Petition for Change of Name

• Petition for Child Custody

• Paternity Forms

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 43 of 57



www.selfrepresent.mo.gov

Approved

forms packets

provide all the

basic forms

needed for

filing the case.

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 44 of 57



The easiest way to 
assist self-represented litigants! 

Refer them to….Refer

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 45 of 57



Opportunities to improve …

Continue your education on serving  
self-represented litigants.

 Review court policies related to 
customer service and litigants who 
represent themselves.

 Develop a list of resources and post 
them at www.selfrepresent.mo.gov

Offer suggestions for improving 
customer service. 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 46 of 57



Serving the Self-Represented Litigant

Everyone has the right to 
access to justice

Make the courts more 
accessible in our communities

Improve interactions with self-
represented litigants to enhance 
respect for our justice system.

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 47 of 57



Highlights Report CAFC Subcommittee on Pro Bono 
March 2014 

 
 

Pro Bono/LSR “Roadshows”: 
The first roadshow was held November 21, 2013 for the Callaway County Bar 
Association.  About one-half of the members were present including two members of 
the circuit court.  Judge Wilson presented the program.  The LSR and Judge’s Tool Kit 
was distributed.  As planned CLE credit was given to participants.  Participants were 
invited to give their input as to how CAFC can collaborate with the local bar on pro 
bono/LSR matters.  The survey questionnaire and brochures were emailed to all absent 
members. 
 
The next roadshow is planned for the twelfth circuit bar (Audrain, Montgomery & Warren 
Counties).  Advance work in underway researching information about these counties 
and communicating with the local bar leaders.  We will invite CAFC members to 
participate in event scheduled in your county. 
 
The roadshows are kickoff events.  They need to be followed up with on-going, two-way 
communication with the local bar.  Our subcommittee wishes to collaborate with the 
Communications and LSR committees in developing regular communications to local 
bar members.  One such resource is a step-by-step how-to-do-it guide to creating local 
LSR panels. 
 
On the day following the Callaway roadshow Judge Wilson spoke to the attorneys 
attending the semi-annual committee meetings luncheon on the need to provide access 
to justice for all.  The text of his talk was reprinted in ESQ. The LSR and Judge’s Toolkit 
brochures were distributed. 
 
Collaboration with Law Schools:  In order to move forward with Objective 3 of the 
Implementation Plan of the Pro Bono Subcommittee, a list of questions is being  
prepared to gather information from the Missouri law schools.  The questions relate to 
the current level of student education on and provision of LSR and/or Pro Bono 
Services.  They further delve into what interest the schools have in expanding those 
services and what would be needed from the Missouri Supreme Court, the CAFC and/or 
the private bar to accomplish an expansion of services.  Our subcommittee has already 
added auxiliary members of representatives of each law school.  Upon finalization of the 
questionnaire, it will be transmitted to the representatives of each Missouri law school. 

Collaboration with pro bono coordinators of major law firms: Once the 
questionnaire has been finalized for transmission to the law schools, it will be modified 
for distribution to Pro Bono Coordinators at major law firms.  This series of questions 
would relate to the attorneys at each firm and their participation in LSR and/or Pro Bono 
Services.  Similar questions about expanding those services would also be asked.  A list 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 48 of 57



of 25 Coordinators was previously complied and will be utilized for this survey.  This 
gathering of information and ideas would be the next step in fulfilling Objective 4 of the 
Implementation Plan.   

Merger with Self-help Centers Subcommittee: Although the Pro Bono and Self-help 
Centers subcommittees are now merged, we have not yet merged the implementation 
plans. 
 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 49 of 57



LSR Subcommittee Report for March 7th Meeting 
 

1. LSR leaflet/brochure.  Lou reports Judge Wilson has been utilizing the current 
version the LSR leaflet/brochure at his talks at local bar associations that we like 
to call “roadshows.”  The leaflet is intended as a marketing tool to get lawyers and 
judges exposed to LSR. The Subcommittee is continuing to improve the 
leaflet/brochure.  Kelly is working with a friend in the printing business to 
improve the design and look of the leaflet/brochure, and the Subcommittee is 
making suggestions to improve the content of the leaflet brochure.  The current 
version of the leaflet will be included in the email with this report.    

 
2.  Kathleen and Bruce are working on an initial draft of a paper on “how to” 

implement an LSR referral service at the local level.  She hopes to have a draft 
completed very soon that will be distributed to the Subcommittee for review.  
Once finalized the “how to” tool can be distributed to judges and local bar 
associations and can be distributed at the “roadshows.”  

 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 50 of 57



 

 

L I M I T E D  S C O PE  
R E P R E S E N TAT I O N  

 

“ a  la  ca r t e  l ega l  s er v i ce ”  
 

 

Efficient legal service: 

 Saves time and increases revenue 

for the attorney 

 Provides affordable legal service for 

the client 

 Saves court delays caused by  

“do-it-yourself” pro se litigants 

 Provides a win for everyone 

involved 

Frequently Asked Questions: 

Do I have to let the court know I am 
representing the client using LSR?  

Does LSR increase malpractice risk? 

Must the lawyer make an independent 
inquiry into the facts? 

When does the limited appearance end? 
Is a court order required?  

Resources: 
 

For more information visit the  
Pro Bono Attorney’s Deskbook  

limited scope representation section.  
It can be found at 

www.courts.mo.gov/hosted/probono/
LimitedRepresentation.htm  

 
A sample LSR agreement form that is editable 

and approved by the rule is available at 
www.courts.mo.gov/hosted/probono/Forms/

FormforLtdReprtf.rtf 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The committee welcomes suggestions  
for further development of these or  

additional resources. E-mail questions  
or suggestions to the committee at 

cafc@courts.mo.gov.  
 

 
11/18/13 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 51 of 57

http://www.courts.mo.gov/hosted/probono/LimitedRepresentation.htm
http://www.courts.mo.gov/hosted/probono/LimitedRepresentation.htm
http://www.courts.mo.gov/hosted/probono/Forms/FormforLtdReprtf.rtf
http://www.courts.mo.gov/hosted/probono/Forms/FormforLtdReprtf.rtf
mailto:cafc@courts.mo.gov


What is Limited Scope  
Representation (LSR)? 

LSR is where a lawyer and 
the client agree on limited 
legal services rather than the 
lawyer handling the matter in 
its entirety.  

 
What can be done in LSR? 

Legal tasks involved in LSR 
include, but are not limited to, 
providing legal advice or 
coaching, legal research, 
drafting legal documents or 
pleadings, and representing a 
client at a court hearing or 
mediation.  

 
Authority 

Rule 4-1.2 (c) states, “A 
lawyer may limit the scope of 
representation if the client 
gives informed consent in a 
writing signed by the client to 
the essential terms of the 
representation and the 
lawyer's limited role.” 

For the  
Pro Bono Client 

 
 LSR is a time-saving 

way to reach the 
underserved population 
in need of help. 

 Agreeing that the client 
does what they are able 
to do encourages the 
pro bono client to take 
ownership of their own 
problem. 

 LSR helps pro bono 
clients successfully 
manage their cases. 

 

The Judge’s Role 
Visit the LSR section of The 
Judges’ Tool Kit on Pro 
bono Legal Assistance at 
www.courts.mo.gov/
page.jsp?id=42938 for 
resources you can use to 
work with your local judges. 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 52 of 57



Committee on Access to Family Courts 
COMMITTEE REPORT for March 7, 2014 
 
Litigant Awareness Committee 
Selfrepresent Website Committee 
 
Work on translation of the website under a State Justice Institute grant continues.  The website 
committee continues to monitor comments made by users and the transition of approved 
forms to the website.   
 
OSCA IT staff will be revamping the forms on the website into a new interactive and savable 
document using Adobe software.  
 
The following form packets recommended by CAFC are not yet available on the website: 
 

Dissolution packet for Respondent (separate Answer form) 
 
Dissolution packet option without the parenting plan (for spouses without children of 
the marriage) 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 53 of 57



Forms Subcommittee Highlights 
March 2014 

 
Voluntary Dismissal Form: The Forms subcommittee has developed a 
Voluntary Dismissal form to be utilized with all CAFC petitions and motions.   
 
Service by Publication Changes to Motion to Modify:  The SJRC has 
approved changes made to the Motion to Modify Child Custody and Support 
to address the limitations of service by publication. 
 
Creation of Answer Packets: The Forms Subcommittee recently discussed 
the creation of separate answer packets.  After a discussion of the work 
needed to create separate answer packets, the subcommittee has decided to 
table this idea until OSCA can make further progress on the more significant 
goal of making our forms savable through Life Cycle. 
 
Life Cycle: OSCA is still working to apply Life Cycle to Judge Smith’s 
Forms.  OSCA has hired Rebecca Boyce to replace Angela Rickard who 
previous worked to apply Life Cycle to our forms.   
 
Translation: CAFC forms were not included in grant application for 
translation of website.  Grants are available quarterly and OSCA will apply 
for a translation grant for the CAFC forms in the next 2-3 months. 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 54 of 57



Highlights Report CAFC Subcommittee on Communication 
March 2014 

 

The subcommittee chair met with our new members of the sub-committee this week.  
They are scheduling periodic meetings for every two weeks until up and running and 
then monthly.  They plan to have a meeting to brainstorm on addressing issues we see 
with getting information to people who would use the forms. 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 55 of 57



Committee on Access to Family Courts 
COMMITTEE REPORTS for March 7, 2014 
 
Court Staff Education Committee 
 
Feedback from the Court Clerk Education Committee on the JEWELS training modules has been 
incorporated in revised drafts.  Module 1 “Serving the Self‐represented Litigant” has been 
edited to provide an overview of access to the courts, Court Operating Rule 25 and resources 
available through the www.selfrepresent.mo.gov website.  Module 11 is still in revision and will 
provide a more specific explanation of appropriate customer service for court clerks assisting 
the public. The powerpoint presentation for Module 1 is attached.  
 
We do not have specific invitation at this time to make a presentation at the Spring 2014 Court 
Clerk College (April 30‐May 2) in Jefferson City.  The status will be updated on March 7, 2014. 
 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 56 of 57



Judicial Education Subcommittee Report for CAFC Meeting – December 6th  
 

1. Judge Alan Blankenship and Judge Sandra Hemphill gave a good one hour 
presentation at this year’s New Judge Training on January 28, 2014 on Self-Represented 
Litigants and incorporated education regarding Limited Scope Representation. 
 
2. Lou suggested that we reach out to Judge Blankenship and Judge Hemphill to see 
if they would be interested in joining this Subcommittee as auxiliary members.  
 
3. The next Trial Judges Education Committee Meeting is scheduled for June 5, 
2014.  The committee will be finalizing the agenda for the 2014 Judicial College. 
   
4. Lou made some very good suggests about expanding the mission of the Judicial 
Education subcommittee.  The idea is to expand the mission to include not only educating 
judges but also developing and implementing a program to encourage judges to actually 
implement pro bono and LSR programs in their circuit.  At this point this is only an idea 
but here are some relevant thoughts: 
  

a. The ABA study on why attorneys do (or do not) perform pro bono found 
that one of the leading factors is a judge asking and supporting the attorneys. 

 
b. We have developed the Judge’s Toolkit as a resource for judges on               
implementing and supporting pro bono work.  We have the “how to do it” 
manual but we need to get judges to read it and begin to apply it. 

 
c.   With Judge Wilson’s support we have begun the “roadshow” with his 
meeting with local bar associations and presenting a free CLE on LSR & Pro 
Bono.  This kickoff event begins on-going, two-way communication between 
local bars and CAFC.  He has visited Callaway County bar and we are in the 
preliminary stages of setting up a visit to Audrain County and the 12th Circuit.  
Each time we refine the project. 

 

March 2014 Agenda Packet Page 57 of 57


	March 2014 agenda
	Minutes 12-6-2013 - Corrected
	CAFC 713 - Draft to Committee
	Court Clerk Training Module I
	Highlights Report CAFC Subcommittee on Pro Bono  March 2014
	LSR.subcommittee.report.03.07.14
	lsr.brochure.02.10.14
	Committee Reports Mar 2014 LAP-Website
	March 2014 Highlights - Forms
	Highlights Report CAFC Subcommittee on Communication
	Committee Reports Mar 2014 Ct Clerk Ed
	Judicial.Ed. subcommittee.report.03.07.14

	County/City of St: 
	 Louis: [_______________________________________]

	Case Number: 
	Division Number: 
	Pleadings: [______________________________________________________________]
	First Name: 
	Middle Name: 
	Last Name: 
	Name Suffix: 
	I am the PetitionerPlaintiff in this case: Off
	I am the RespondentDefendant in this case: Off
	I am a third party in this case: Off
	Others Please specify: Off
	Other Party: 
	Street: 
	City: 
	State: 
	Zip: 
	Telephone Number: 
	Email Address: 
	Other Party First Name: 
	Other Party Middle Name: 
	Other Party Last Name: 
	Other Party Name Suffix: 
	I am no longer asking this Court to make a decision on the petition or: Off
	Understanding Dismissal Check Box: Off
	Understand Costs Check Box: Off
	Person Given Copy: 
	Mailing Check Box: Off
	Mailing Date to Other Party: 
	Mail Copy - Street Address: 
	Mail Copy - City Address: 
	Mail Copy - State: 
	Mail Copy - Zip: 
	Hand Copy: Off
	Hand Deliver Date: 
	Fax Copy: Off
	Fax Number: 
	Fax Copy Date: 
	Fax Copy Time: 
	Email Copy: Off
	Email Copy Address: 
	Email Copy Date: 
	Printed Name: 


